
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 33 SOUTH MAIN STREET, COLFAX, CA 

 

MAYOR WILL STOCKWIN  MAYOR PRO TEM MARNIE MENDOZA 

COUNCILMEMBERS  STEVE HARVEY  KIM DOUGLASS  

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

April 25, 2018 

Regular Session 7:00 PM 
 

 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

April 25, 2018 

 
Page 1 of 2  

 

 

1. CALL TO  ORD ER  

1A. Call Open Session to Order 

1B. Pledge of Allegiance 

1C. Roll Call 

1D. Approval of Agenda Order 
This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change to the agenda sequence. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented  or amended. 

 

2. CON SEN T CALEN D AR 
Matters on the Consent Agenda are routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a Council vote. No 

discussion of these items ensues unless specific items are pulled for discussion and separate action.  If you wish to have an  item 

pulled from the Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the Mayor. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Consent Calendar 

2A. Minutes – Regular meeting April 11, 2018 

 Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 11, 2018. 

2B. Cash Summary Report – March 2018 

Recommendation:  Accept and  file. 

2C. Sales and Use Taxes 

Recommendation: For information only   

2D. Quarterly Investment Report 

Recommendation:  Receive and  file. 

2E. Maidu Village Development Proposal CEQA Document Preparation – Contract for 

Professional Services  

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 28-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute 

an agreement with The RCH Group for the Maidu Village Developmen t Project CEQA 

Analysis in an amount not to exceed  $39,100. 

 

3. PUBLIC COMMEN T 
Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the subject matter 

jurisdiction of the City Council that are not listed on this agenda.  Please make your comments as brief as possible; not to exceed 

three (3) minutes in length.  The Council cannot act on items not included on this agenda; however, if action is required it will be 

referred to staff. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

April 25, 2018 

 
Page 2 of 2  

 

4. COUN CIL, STAFF AN D  OTHER REPORTS 
The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at 

committee meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the 

Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council 

meeting agenda. 

4A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items - All Councilmembers 

4B. City Operations Update – City staff 

4C. Additional Reports – Agency partners 

 

5. COUN CIL BUSIN ESS 

5A. Pond 1 Levee Project, Award of Contract 

Staff Presentation: Dane Schilling, City Engineer  

Recommendation:  Discuss and  consider adopting Resolution 29-2018  

1. Authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with Diamond D General 

Engineering, Inc. for construction of the Wastewater Treatment Plant Pond 1 Levee 

Project in the amount of $168,988 with a contingency of up to $16,899; and , 

2. Authorizing the City Manager to engage Coastland  Engineering to perform 

construction management and  inspection of the project in an amount not to exceed 

$21,000. Rising Sun Road Pavement Resurfacing Project, Design and  Bid  Approval. 

5B. 2018 ADA Improvements Project, Design Approval and Bid Authorization 

Staff Presentation: Dane Schilling, City Engineer  

Recommendation:  Discuss and  consider adopting Resolution 30-2018 approving the 

design for the City of Colfax 2018 ADA Improvements Project and  authorizing the City 

Manager to advertise for construction bids. 

5C. USDA – Rural Development Community Facilities Grant 

Staff Presentation: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director  

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 31-2018 accepting the United  States Department of 

Agriculture (USDA) – Rural Development Community Facilities Grant for purchase of 

new City Rescue Vehicle and  Wild land  Fire Protection Equipment . 

 

6. GOOD OF THE ORDER - INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
Informal observation reports and inquiries regarding the business of the City may be presented by Council members under this 

agenda item or requests for placement of items of interest on a future agenda.  No action will be taken. 
 

7. AD JOURN MEN T 
 

 

I, Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk for the City of Colfax declare that this agenda was posted   

at Colfax City Hall and the Colfax Post Office. The agenda is also available on the City website at www.Colfax-ca.gov.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted  prior to action being initiated  in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council a ction 

in court, you may be limited  to raising only those issues you or someone else raised  at a public hearing described  in this 

notice/ agenda, or in written correspondence delivered  to the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said  public he aring. 

 

http://www.colfax-ca.gov/


City of Colfax 1 
City Council Minutes April 11, 2018 
 

6A.      City of Colfax 
    City Council Minutes 
    Regular Meeting of Wednesday, April 11, 2018 
    City Hall Council Chambers 
    33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 
 

 

 

 

1 OPEN SESSION 
1A. Call to Order 

Mayor Stockwin called the meeting to order at 7:00PM. 
1B. Pledge of Allegiance 

Richard Miller, area resident, led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
1C. Roll Call 

Council members present:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
1D. Approval of Agenda Order 

 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, the City Council 
approved the agenda order. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

2 PRESENTATIONS 
2A. Placer Mosquito and Vector Control Awareness Week 

Joel Buettner, General Manager of Placer County Mosquito and Vector Control District 
(PCMVCD) 

Mr. Buettner introduced the activities and challenges of the PCMVCD through a PowerPoint 
presentation, including statistics relating to diseases carried by mosquitoes such as West Nile 
Virus.  He emphasized the importance of reporting dead birds or unusual mosquito activity so 
the district can track and prevent the spread of West Nile Virus and other diseases.  Mr. Buettner 
also gave a brief description of technological solutions the district is implementing to streamline 
and improve the effectiveness of their efforts to monitor and control nuisance species. 
Council and the public asked for and received clarification on some of the details. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey and a second by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, the City 
Council adopted Resolution 20-2018 recognizing West Nile Virus and Mosquito and Vector 
Control Awareness Week 2018. 
 

2B. Proclaim April 2018 as Child Abuse Prevention Month 
Barbara Besana, Executive Director of Kids First 

Mayor Stockwin informed Council Ms. Besana was not able to attend the meeting to give her 
presentation. 
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza and a second by Councilmember Harvey, the City 
Council adopted Resolution 21-2018 declaring April 2018 as Child Abuse Prevention Awareness 
Month in the City of Colfax. 
 

3 CONSENT CALENDAR 
3A. Minutes - Regular Meeting March 28, 2018 

Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 28, 2018. 

ITEM  2A
1 of 5



City of Colfax 2 
City Council Minutes April 11, 2018 
 

3B. Vacant Land Purchase of APN #006-066-028 a portion of the area on Main Street 
known as “Lot of Arts”.  
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 22-2018 authorizing the City Manager to enter into 
a Vacant Land Purchase Agreement on behalf of the City to purchase APN #006-066-028, a 
portion of the area on Main Street known as “Lot of Arts”, from Scott Miles for $45,000. 

3C. Cannabis Background Check Authorization  
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 23-2018 approving an application for authorization 
to access State and Federal level Summary Criminal History Information for employment, 
volunteers and contractors, licensing or certification purposes. 

3D. Project List for Road Repair – SB 1 Funding  
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 24-2018 adopting a list of potential projects to be 
funded in full or in part by SB 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act ensuring 
eligibility for State of California Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) 
revenues. 

3E. Agreement for Information Technology Services and Website Design  
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 25-2018 authorizing the City Manager to enter into 
a professional services agreement with Vision Quest Information Solutions Inc. for a one 
year term with an option to evaluate service levels for years two and three. 

3F. Schedule of Activities for Collecting Delinquent Sewer and Garbage Charges on 
Annual Tax Rolls  
Recommendation:  For information only. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Councilmember Douglass, the City Council 
approved the Consent Calendar. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

4 PUBLIC COMMENT 
Travis Berry, 46 Quinns Lane 

 Mr. Berry asked Council to reconsider their choice of the City Manager. He stated 
Council should think of other options which he feels would lower sewer rates, 
lower problems and improve the ability to get things done. 

 He stated Council fired him and that had cost the City $80,000 and hadn’t worked 
out well for the City.  He indicated that hiring the City Manager and firing Mr. Berry 
demonstrated Council’s inability to make good decisions.   

Laura Crenshaw, 333 W. Oak Street 
 Ms. Crenshaw, representing the Placer County Office of Education, invited Council 

to participate in the “KidsDay” event which will be held at Colfax Elementary 
School on April 27th from 9am to 10:30am.  She handed out flyers for the event. 

Karen Furry, Area resident 
 Ms. Furry requested Council change the City ordinance to allow those who live on 

the perimeter of the City to vote and run for City Council.  It is frustrating that local 
residents, especially those connected to the City sewer system, have no vote or 
voice in decisions pertaining to them. 

City Attorney Cabral explained California State Law controls who can vote and run for office in a 
local jurisdiction and voting privileges can’t be changed at a local level.   

 
 
 

ITEM  2A
2 of 5



City of Colfax 3 
City Council Minutes April 11, 2018 
 

5 COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS 
5A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers 

Councilmember Harvey 
 Councilmember Harvey represented Colfax on the Placer County Transportation 

Planning Agency. They discussed transit plans regarding how many buses are 
needed in Colfax.  The Agency has a new Executive Director, Michael Lufkin. 

City Manager Heathcock mentioned that Colfax currently has 1.9 riders/hour on the bus system, 
but 5 riders would be needed for the service to be sustainable. 

Councilmember Douglass 
 Councilmember Douglass represented the City at the Sacramento Area Council of 

Governments board meeting, the Project Go board meeting and the Pioneer Energy 
board meeting. 

 He mentioned Pioneer Energy is closely monitoring legislation at the state level 
which could impact how local governments, including Colfax, conduct business 
through Joint Power Authorities. 

 Councilmember Douglass and volunteers conducted the second phase of the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) survey to allow Colfax to move 
forward with using the block grant funds for the Culver Street repaving project. 

Council discussed the need to contact State lawmakers with the City’s opposition to legislation 
intended to remove local control of decisions.  Mayor Stockwin will work with staff to draft 
letters of opposition. 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza 
 Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza is developing plans to install plaques recognizing 2 

historic buildings in town.   
 Bus Tours of historic sites related to Chinese workers on the railroad are stopping 

at Cape Horn as part of a program she has been working on for several years. 
 Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza attended the roundabout public meeting. 
 She informed staff of a need to provide ADA accommodations for a deaf 

constituent who would like to attend City Council meetings. 
 She mentioned a constituent who let her know that train noises affect his sleep. 

Mayor Stockwin 
 Mayor Stockwin was pleased with the good turnout for the roundabout meeting.  
 He attended a meeting of the Canyon Keepers for a presentation by the Placer 

County Parks Department.  They are proposing a trail from Donner to Auburn and 
this might be a good opportunity to have a spur trail into Colfax. 

 Mayor Stockwin gave a rain report:  With 4.5 inches thus far in April; the season 
stands 46.7 inches for the season. 
 

5B. City Operations – City Staff 
City Manager Heathcock 

 City Manager Heathcock informed Council the United States Department of 
Agriculture (USDA) has offered a $30,000 grant to Colfax to subsidize the fund for 
the Volunteer Fire Department Rescue Vehicle which was purchased last year.  
Acceptance of the Grant will be on the next agenda.  USDA would like to continue 
to work with the City for other needs. 

ITEM  2A
3 of 5



City of Colfax 4 
City Council Minutes April 11, 2018 
 

 Staff has petitioned the State Water Board for adjustment to the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant loan.  Supervisor Montgomery has offered to write a letter in 
support of the request. 

Mayor Stockwin heard “out of order” comments from the public and opted to allow statements. 
Travis Berry, 46 Quinns Lane, stated the rescue vehicle purchase price was $180,000 and this 
extra $30,000 grant increases the City’s expenditures. 

 

5C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 
Sergeant Ty Conners, Placer County Sheriff Office Colfax Substation Commander 

 Sergeant Conners recommended everyone attend the Vanderschoot fundraiser in 
Auburn on April 21st and the May 7th Peace Officer Memorial Service in 
Sacramento. 

 He reminded everyone to be safe around rivers during the spring thaw. 
 Sergeant Conners stated the County has prepared the contract for Sheriff services.  

He suggested the Emergency Services Contract Renewal Committee join him at the 
Auburn station for a discussion and tour.  The committee will meet soon. 

Chief Brian Eagan, Colfax Fire Department Battalion Chief 
 Chief Eagan informed Council the mastication of the landfill and the Wastewater 

Treatment Plant is scheduled for May 16th. 
Council and staff discussed the mastication process.  This is part of a larger project including 
private landowners.  When the process is completed the land will provide a shaded fuel brake 
and will result in beautiful woodland. 

 Frank Klein, President of Colfax Area Chamber of Commerce  
 Mr. Klein invited everyone to the first Chamber Mixer of the year to be held at 

Lumenaris on April 17th from 5:30pm-7:30pm. 
 Sharon Conners and Foxey McCleary, Sierra Vista Community Center  

 Ms. McCleary and Ms. Conners updated Council on the Sierra Vista Community 
Center event schedule for the spring season. 

 Fred Abbott, Event Liaison  
 Mr. Abbott gave an update on the plans for Railroad Days, including model train 

and photography exhibits. 
 

6 COUNCIL BUSINESS 
6A.  Amendment to Engineering Design Services Contract for S. Auburn Street and I-80 

 Roundabout Project  
 Staff Presentation:  Dane Schilling, City Engineer 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 26-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute 
Amendment No. 1 to the Consultant Services Agreement between the City of Colfax and 
Omni-Means, A GHD Company, for the S. Auburn Street and I-80 Roundabout Project. 

 

City Engineer Schilling explained the City contracted with Omni-Means for the design and 
coordination of the S. Auburn Street and I-80 Roundabout Project. Caltrans requested two extra 
environmental studies.  In addition, the City and Placer County Water Agency (PCWA) 
determined the PCWA waterline should be moved as part of the project.  PCWA has agreed to 
reimburse the City for the design of moving the waterline.  Staff is requesting Council adopt this 
resolution to amend the Omni-Means contract to include the environmental studies and the 
design of the waterline. 

ITEM  2A
4 of 5



City of Colfax 5 
City Council Minutes April 11, 2018 
 

City Manager Heathcock stated PCWA will reimburse the City $5,200.  Even with the amendment, 
the total cost of the contract is below the Engineer’s estimate. 
 

There was no public comment. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, and a second by Councilmember Douglass, Council 
approved Resolution 26-2018 by the following unanimous roll call vote: 
Ayes:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

6B.  Access Easement to 29 & 45 East Grass Valley Street (Ann Wendell)  
 Staff Presentation:  Alfred A. “Mick” Cabral, City Attorney 
 Recommendation:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 27-2018 authorizing the 
City Manager to execute and deliver a grant of nonexclusive access easement to Ann Wendell. 
City Attorney Cabral stated this is a simple agreement formalizing an access to the properties 
owned by Ms. Wendell.  Ms. Wendell originally offered to purchase the land between Grass Valley 
Street and her properties, but the City was not inclined to sell the property.  Instead the City is 
willing to offer a non-exclusive easement.   This will allow Ms. Wendell’s tenants to enter the 
properties while maintaining City control of the land.  
City Manager Heathcock noted the tenants currently use the land without the benefit of the 
easement. 
 

There was no comment from Council or the public. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, and a second by Councilmember Douglass, Council 
approved Resolution 27-2018 by the following unanimous roll call vote: 
Ayes:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

7 GOOD OF THE ORDER – INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
Councilmember Douglass, in light of the earlier request during public comment, suggested the 
City form an at-large advisory committee to allow input from local non-resident citizens. 
Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza suggested Council invite the Colfax Elementary student recipients of 
the “Hard Work Café Awards” to a Council meeting to receive their awards.  
Councilmember Stockwin inquired if the City incurs liability for train accidents by having a Quiet 
Zone.  City Attorney Cabral said the obligation for safety belongs entirely with Union Pacific.   

8 ADJOURNMENT 
 

As there was no further business, Mayor Stockwin adjourned the meeting at 8:21pm. 
 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 11th day of April, 2018 
 

ITEM  2A
5 of 5



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE APRIL 25, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: April 11, 2018 
SUBJECT: Cash Summary Report: March 2018 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and file. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
These monthly financial reports include General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax 
Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis 
and are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports, and bank statements.  
Detailed budget comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and also as part of the proposed budget 
process each year. 
 

The purpose of the reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for Council and the public of the 
financial transactions of the City. 
 

The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in  
March 2018.  Monthly highlights include: 

 Negative cash fund balances in Special Revenues and Capital project funds are due to timing of 
funding allocations and reimbursements.   

o Fund 250 - Streets& Roads – The first allocation from PCTPA for FY2017-2018 funding was 
received in February.  The balance of PCTPA funding and transfer of internal General Funds 
as budgeted will finalize in June. 

o Fund 355 and 385 – Initial project costs to be reimbursed with project funding. 

 Major Expenses for March included: 
o Quarterly payment for Sheriff contract 

 Major Revenues for February included: 
o Monthly estimated sales tax revenues 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs 
a. Cash Analysis – Balance 
b. Expenses by Month 
c. Revenues by Month 

2. Cash Activity Reports  
a. Cash Summary 
b. Cash Transactions Report – by individual fund 
c. Check Register Report  - Accounts Payable 
d. Daily Cash Summary Report (Cash Receipts) 

ITEM  2B
1 of 10



ITEM  2B
2 of 10



ITEM  2B
3 of 10



ITEM  2B
4 of 10



ITEM  2B
5 of 10



ITEM  2B
6 of 10



ITEM  2B
7 of 10



ITEM  2B
8 of 10



ITEM  2B
9 of 10



ITEM  2B
10 of 10



 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE APRIL 25, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: April 11, 2018 

SUBJECT: Sales and Use Taxes 
 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:  General Fund 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Information only 

SUMMARY: 
 

The City has received the final accounting of Sales and Use Tax revenues for the quarter ended December 31, 
2017. Total sales tax revenue for the quarter was $330,457, which is the highest 2nd quarter (fiscal year) in 
recent history.  Year to date sales tax revenues are 16% higher than the previous fiscal year for the same time 
period and represent 55% of the annual budget for this current fiscal year (assumes straight line budget – 
forecasted revenues spread evenly over quarters). 
  
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
 
The attached chart – Retail Sales Tax History – reports the history of sales tax revenues since 1999. As reported 
previously, the fiscal 2015-2016 year included the true up and final adjustments related to the end of the 
decade old triple flip sales tax program which ended December 31, 2015.  This final adjustment is estimated to 
be approximately $100,000 of the growth reported for the 2015-2016 fiscal year.  Considering this adjustment 
was related to the time period of the entire triple flip process it should be considered when reviewing year to 
year changes in revenues. 
 
Our current fiscal year 2017-2018 budget was updated in February 2018 as part of the midyear budget review 
and was conservatively based on fiscal year 2016-2017 actuals.  The budget is now $1,150,000 which is a 4% 
increase over the final 2016-2017 actuals.   It appears we are on track for reaching and perhaps exceeding 
forecasted budget revenues for the current fiscal year. Staff will continue to closely monitor sales and use tax 
revenues and provide current year projections when available.  This data will be utilized as we project revenues 
in our 2-year budget process which is currently underway. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Graph – City of Colfax - Retail Sales Tax Revenues 
2. Chart – City of Colfax – Retail Sales Tax History 

ITEM  2C
1 of 3



ITEM  2C
2 of 3



ITEM  2C
3 of 3



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE APRIL 25, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: April 11, 2018 
SUBJECT: Cash Summary Report: March 2018 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and file. 
 

 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 
 
California Government Code Section 53646 and the City of Colfax Investment Policy require a quarterly 
investment report be submitted to the City Council. Such report shall include at least the following 
information: 

 Types of Investments; 

 Name of the institution in which funds are invested or deposited; 

 Date of Maturity, if applicable; 

 Par and dollar amount investment for all securities; 

 Percent distribution of each type of investment or deposit; current market value as of the date of 
the report, including source of the valuation except those under LAIF; 

 Rate of interest 

 Average weighted yield of all investments 

 A statement relating the report to the City's Investment Policy; and 

 A statement that there are sufficient funds to meet the City's next six months' financial obligations. 
 

The current practice for cash management is to maintain an operating balance between $75,000 and 
$150,000 in the City's US Bank Corporate checking account. This account accumulates Earnings Credits 
based on the account balance which offset/reduce monthly service charges. City funds in excess of targeted 
operating balance are transferred to the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF} on a 
weekly basis. The checking account balance may be reported at an amount higher than the target balance 
by the Bank due to the timing of City checks being processed by vendors/service providers. 
 
Our investment policy dictates that the City should have liquid short term securities to meet six month's 
financial obligations. The budget for fiscal year 2017-2018 reflects nearly $4.6M in annual expenditures, 
therefore our target for liquid short term securities would be $2.3M. 
 
 
 

ITEM  2D
1 of 5



2 

 

 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
The attached schedule Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool satisfies the State's reporting requirements. 
Additionally, we have determined: 

 The investments held at March 31, 2018 conform to the City Investment Policy adopted by 
Resolution 29-2014. 

 The composite yield of the City's investment pool to be the rate of 1.33% for the quarter ended 
March 31, 2018. 

 There are sufficient funds on deposit to meet all anticipated City expenditures for the period April 
01, 2018 through September 30, 2018. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Historically, due to fluctuations in fund balances, investment opportunities outside the corporate checking 
and LAIF accounts have been somewhat limited. With several years of solid funding levels, the City staff is 
investigating additional investment opportunities. We have initiated conversation with Placer County 
Treasury Office for their investment pool (earnings are currently higher than LAIF} and with Multi-Bank 
Securities, Inc for some short term Certificates of Deposit (CD) investments. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool 
2. State of California – PMIA and LAIF Performance Report (QE 3/31/18) 
3. State of California – PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields 

ITEM  2D
2 of 5



ITEM  2D
3 of 5



ITEM  2D
4 of 5



ITEM  2D
5 of 5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

FOR THE APRIL 25, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Amy Feagans, Planning Director 

DATE: April 17, 2018 

SUBJECT: Maidu Village Development Proposal CEQA Document Preparation – Contract for 
Professional Services  

 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  $ 
FROM FUND:  Developer 
Funded 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 28-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
agreement with The RCH Group for the Maidu Village Development Project CEQA Analysis in an amount 
not to exceed $39,100. 

 
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY: 
The City recently received a planning application for the development of the proposed Maidu Village highway 
commercial development on South Auburn Street. As required by California Environmental Quality Agency (CEQA), 
an Initial Study must be prepared to determine the level of environmental impacts as a result of the proposed 
project.  Because the City does not have the expertise in-house, it is appropriate to hire an outside consultant to 
prepare the document. Although the contract will be between the City and The RCH Group, the developer will be 
responsible for funding the entire cost of the Study. 
 
The RCH Group has submitted the attached scope of work to complete the necessary work (Exhibit A to the attached 
resolution) in compliance with CEQA requirements. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
The attached scope of work outlines the specific tasks that will be undertaken including the kickoff meeting with staff 
and the developer, preparation of the administrative draft Initial Study and circulation of the Study to appropriate 
public agencies. Preparation of the final memo and environmental document (Negative Declaration or Mitigated 
Negative Declaration) are also included in the proposal. 
 
The actual development proposal will be reviewed separately at a later date. This report addresses only the contract 
for preparation of the required CEQA analysis. 
 
FINANCIAL AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
The total cost for the report is anticipated to be $39,100 and is expected to take approximately five months to 
prepare.  Funding for the project will be paid by the developer. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1.  Resolution 28-2018 
2.  Contract with The RCH Group 

ITEM  2E
1 of 24



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution №28-2018 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH THE 

RCH GROUP FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE MAIDU VILLAGE 

DEVELOPMENT PROJECT CEQA DOCUMENT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

$39,100 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Colfax desires to have the environmental analysis prepared for 

the Maidu Village Development Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Colfax has received a scope of work from The RCH Group to 

perform the requested service; and 
 
WHEREAS, the scope of services provided by The RCH Group includes the tasks 

necessary to prepare the environmental evaluation of the proposed development project. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Colfax 
authorizes the City Manager to execute on behalf and in the name of the City of Colfax a 
professional services contract with The RCH Group for the preparation of the environmental 
documentation and evaluation as attached to this Resolution. 
 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at a 
regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 25th day of April, 2018 by 
the following vote of the Council: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:      
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:  

                                        
        __________________________________ 
                                   Will Stockwin, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 

____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

 

ITEM  2E
2 of 24



The RHC Group  -  April 25, 2018 

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on this 25th day of April 2018 by and between 
the City of Colfax, a municipal corporation of the State of California ("City") and The RCH 
Group (“Consultant").  
 

RECITALS 
 

A. The City desires to retain Consultant to provide the Services set forth in detail in 
Exhibit A hereto (the "Services") subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 

B. Consultant is duly licensed and sufficiently experienced to undertake and perform 
the Services in a skilled and workmanlike manner and desires to do so in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
  

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and conditions set 
forth in this Agreement, the City and Consultant agree as follows: 
 
Section 1. Services 
 

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant shall furnish 
and perform all of the Services described in detail in Exhibit A hereto and incorporated 
herein by this reference (the "Services") to the satisfaction of the City.  Consultant shall not 
perform any work exceeding the scope of the Services described in Exhibit A without prior 
written authorization from the City.  
 

Section 2. Time of Completion.  
 

Consultant's schedule for performance of the Services is set forth in Exhibit A hereto which 
is incorporated herein by this reference.  Consultant shall commence performance of the 
Services promptly upon receipt of written notice from the City to proceed.  Performance of 
the Services shall progress and conclude in accordance with the schedule set forth in 
Exhibit A.  During the performance of the Services, Consultant shall provide the City with 
written progress reports at least once each month and at such additional intervals as City 
may from time to time request.  
 

Section 3. Compensation. 
 

A. Except as may otherwise be provided in Exhibit A or elsewhere in this Agreement or 
its exhibits, Consultant shall invoice City once each month for the Services 
performed during the preceding month.  Such invoices shall itemize all charges in 
such detail as may reasonably be required by City in the usual course of City 
business but shall include at least: 

ITEM  2E
3 of 24



The RHC Group  -  April 25, 2018 

i. the date of performance of each of the Services,  
ii. identification of the person who performed the Services, 

iii. a detailed description of the Services performed on each date, 
iv. the hourly rate at which the Services on each date are charged, 
v. an itemization of all costs incurred and 

vi. the total charges for the Services for the month invoiced.  
As long as the Consultant performs the Services to the satisfaction of the City, the 
City shall pay the Consultant an all-inclusive compensation that shall not exceed the 
amount as detailed in Exhibit A except pursuant to an authorized written change 
order issued pursuant to Section 15 of this Agreement before the Services requiring 
additional compensation are performed. City shall pay Consultant no later than 
thirty (30) days after approval of the monthly invoice by City's staff. 

 
B. The Consultant's compensation for the Services shall be full compensation for all 

indirect and direct personnel, materials, supplies, equipment and services incurred 
by the Consultant and used in carrying out or completing the Services.  Payments 
shall be in accordance with the payment schedule established in Exhibit A or 
elsewhere in this Agreement or its exhibits. 

 

C. The City shall have the right to receive, upon request, documentation substantiating 
charges billed to the City pursuant to this Agreement.  The City shall have the right 
to perform an audit of the Consultant's relevant records pertaining to the charges. 

 

D. Any Services performed more than sixty (60) days prior to the date upon which they 
are invoiced to the City shall not be compensable.  

 

Section 4. Professional Ability; Standard of Quality. 
 
City has relied upon the professional training and ability of Consultant to perform the 
Services described in Exhibit A as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement. 
Consultant shall therefore provide properly skilled professional and technical personnel to 
perform all Services under this Agreement.  All Services performed by Consultant under 
this Agreement shall be in a skillful, workmanlike manner in accordance with applicable 
legal requirements and shall meet the standard of quality ordinarily to be expected of 
competent professionals in Consultant's field of expertise. 
 

Section 5. Indemnification. 
 

Consultant shall hold harmless and indemnify, including without limitation the cost to 
defend, the City and its officers, agents and employees from and against any and all claims, 
demands, damages, costs or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the 
negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of Consultant and/or its agents in the 
performance of the Services. This indemnity does not apply to liability for damages for 

ITEM  2E
4 of 24



The RHC Group  -  April 25, 2018 

death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, arising from the sole 
negligence, willful misconduct or material defects in design by the City or its agents, 
servants employees or independent contractors other than Consultant who are directly 
responsible to the City, or arising from the active negligence of the City officers, agents, 
employees or volunteers  
 

Section 6. Insurance.  
 

Without limiting Consultant's indemnification obligations provided for above, Consultant 
shall take out before beginning performance of the Services and maintain at all times 
during the life of this Agreement the following policies of insurance with insurers 
possessing a Best rating of not less than A.  Consultant shall not allow any subcontractor, 
professional or otherwise, to commence work on any subcontract until all insurance 
required of the Consultant has also been obtained by the subcontractor.  
 

A. Workers' Compensation Coverage. Statutory Workers' Compensation insurance and 
Employer's Liability Insurance to cover its employees. In the alternative, Consultant 
may rely on a self-insurance program to meet its legal requirements as long as the 
program of self-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the California Labor 
Code.  Consultant shall also require all subcontractors, if such are authorized by the 
City, to similarly provide Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the 
Labor Code of the State of California for all of the subcontractor's employees.  All 
Workers' Compensation policies shall be endorsed with the provision that the 
insurance shall not be suspended, voided, or cancelled until thirty (30) days prior 
written notice has been provided to City by the insurer.  The Workers' 
Compensation insurance shall also contain a provision whereby the insurance 
company agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the City and its elected or 
appointed officials, officers, agents, and employees for losses paid under the terms 
of such policy which arise from the Services performed by the insured for the City. 

 

B. General Liability Coverage. General liability insurance, including personal injury and 
property damage insurance for all activities of the Consultant and its 
subcontractors, if such are authorized by the City, arising out of or in connection 
with the Services.  The insurance shall be written on a comprehensive general 
liability form and include a broad form comprehensive general liability 
endorsement.  In the alternative, the City will accept, in satisfaction of these 
requirements, commercial general liability coverage which is equivalent to the 
comprehensive general liability form and a broad form comprehensive general 
liability endorsement.  The insurance shall be in an amount of not less than $1 
million combined single limit personal injury and property damage for each 
occurrence.  The insurance shall be occurrence based insurance.  General liability 
coverage written on a claims made basis shall not be acceptable absent prior 
written authorization from the City.  

ITEM  2E
5 of 24



The RHC Group  -  April 25, 2018 

C. Automobile Liability Coverage. Automobile liability insurance covering bodily injury 
and property damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in 
connection with this Agreement, including coverage for owned, hired and non-
owned vehicles, in an amount of not less than $1 million combined single limit for 
each occurrence.  

 

D. Policy Endorsements. Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy 
shall be endorsed with the following provisions:  

 

1. The City, and its elected or appointed officials, employees and agents shall be 
named as insureds or additional insureds with regard to damages and 
defenses of claims arising from activities performed by or on behalf of the 
Consultant. 

2. The insurance afforded by each policy shall apply separately to each insured 
who is seeking coverage or against whom a claim is made or a suit is brought, 
except with respect to the insurer's limits of liability. 

3. The insurance shall be primary insurance as respects the City and its elected 
or appointed officers, officials, employees and agents. Any other insurance 
maintained by the City or its elected or appointed officers, officials, 
employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of this insurance and shall 
not contribute with it. 

4. The insurance shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced in 
coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has 
been provided to the City. 

5. Any failure to comply with the reporting requirements of any policy shall not 
affect coverage provided to the City, its elected or appointed officers, officials, 
employees, or agents.  

 
E. Professional Liability Coverage. If required by the City, Consultant shall also take out 

and maintain professional liability, errors and omissions insurance in an amount not 
less than $1 million.  The professional liability insurance policy shall be endorsed 
with a provision stating that it shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced 
in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days written notice has been 
provided to the City.  

 

F. Insurance Certificates and Endorsements. Prior to commencing the Services under 
this Agreement, Consultant shall submit to the City documentation evidencing the 
required insurance signed by the insurance agent and the companies named. This 
documentation shall be on forms which are acceptable to the City and shall include 
all required endorsements and verify that coverage is actually in effect.  This 
Agreement shall not be effective until the required insurance forms and 
endorsements are submitted to and approved by the City.  Failure to provide these 
forms within the time period specified by City may result in the award of this 

ITEM  2E
6 of 24



The RHC Group  -  April 25, 2018 

Agreement to another Consultant should the City, in its sole discretion, decide to do 
so. Current certification of insurance shall be kept on file with the City at all times 
during the term of this Agreement.  

 

G. Deductible and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions 
must be declared to and approved by City. 

 

H. Termination of Insurance. If the City receives notification that Consultant's 
insurance will be suspended, voided, cancelled or reduced in coverage or in limits, 
and if the Consultant does not provide for either the reinstatement of that insurance 
or for the furnishing of alternate insurance containing all of the terms and 
provisions specified above prior to the termination of that insurance, City may 
either terminate this Agreement for that breach, or City may secure the required 
insurance to satisfy the conditions of this Agreement and deduct the cost thereof 
from compensation which would otherwise be due and payable to the Consultant 
for Services rendered under the terms of this Agreement. 

 

Section 7. Subcontracts.  
 

Consultant may not subcontract any portion of the Services without the written 
authorization of City.  If City consents to a subcontract, Consultant shall be fully responsible 
to the City and third parties for all acts or omissions of the subcontractor to which the 
Services or any portion thereof are subcontracted.  Nothing in this Agreement shall create 
any contractual relationship between City and any subcontractor, nor shall it create any 
obligation on the part of the City to pay or cause the payment of any monies due to any 
such subcontractor except as otherwise is required by law. 
 
Section 8. Assignment.  
 

Consultant shall not assign any right or obligation under this Agreement without the City's 
prior written consent.  Any attempted assignment of any right or obligation under this 
Agreement without the City's prior written consent shall be void.  
 

Section 9. Entire Agreement. 
 

This Agreement represents the entire understanding of City and Consultant as to those 
matters contained herein.  No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or 
effect with respect to those matters covered herein.  This Agreement may not be modified 
or altered except in writing signed by both parties.  
 
 
 
 

ITEM  2E
7 of 24



The RHC Group  -  April 25, 2018 

Section 10. Jurisdiction. 
 

This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the laws of the State of 
California.  Jurisdiction over any litigation arising from this Agreement shall be in the 
Superior Court of the State of California with venue in Placer County, California.  
 

Section 11. Suspension of Services. 
 

Upon written request by Consultant, City may suspend, in writing, all or any portion of the 
Services if unforeseen circumstances beyond the control of the City and Consultant make 
normal progress of the Services impossible, impractical or infeasible.  Upon written City 
approval to suspend performance of the Services, the time for completion of the Services 
shall be extended by the number of days performance of the Services is suspended.  
 

Section 12. Termination of Services. 
 

City may at any time, at its sole discretion, terminate all or any portion of the Services and 
this Agreement upon seven (7) days written notice to Consultant.  Upon receipt of notice of 
termination, Consultant shall stop performance of the Services at the stage directed by City.  
Consultant shall be entitled to payment within thirty (30) days for Services performed up 
to the date of receipt of the written notice of termination.  Consultant shall not be entitled 
to payment for any Services performed after the receipt of the notice of termination unless 
such payment is authorized in advance in writing by the City. 
 

Should Consultant fail to perform any of the obligations required of Consultant within the 
time and in the manner provided for under the terms of this Agreement, or should 
Consultant violate any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, City may terminate 
this Agreement by providing Consultant with seven (7) days written notice of such 
termination.  The Consultant shall be compensated for all Services performed prior to the 
date of receipt of the notice of termination.  However, the City may deduct from the 
compensation which may be owed to Consultant the amount of damage sustained or 
estimated by City resulting from Consultant's breach of this Agreement. 
 
Consultant's obligations pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of this Agreement shall survive 
termination, and continue in effect for as long as necessary to fulfill the purposes of 
Sections 5 and 6. 
 
Section 13. Independent Contractor. 
 
Consultant shall in all respects be an independent contractor and not an agent or employee 
of City.  Consultant has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of 
the means and methods of performing the Services.  Consultant shall receive no premium 
or enhanced pay for Services normally understood as overtime; nor shall Consultant 

ITEM  2E
8 of 24



The RHC Group  -  April 25, 2018 

receive holiday pay, sick leave, administrative leave or pay for any other time not actually 
expended in the performance of the Services.  It is intended by the parties that Consultant 
shall not be eligible for benefits and shall receive no compensation from the City, except as 
expressly set forth in this Agreement.  Consultant shall submit completed W -9 and Report 
of Independent Contractor forms upon execution of this Agreement and prior to the 
payment of any compensation hereunder.  
 

Section 14. Ownership of Documents. 
 

Within thirty (30) days after the Consultant substantially completes performance of the 
Services, or within thirty (30) days after the termination of this Agreement, the Consultant 
shall deliver to the City all files, records, materials and documents drafted or prepared by 
Consultant's in the performance of the Services.  It is expressly understood and agreed that 
all such files, records, materials and documents are the property of the City and not the 
property of the Consultant.  All finished and unfinished reports, plans, studies, documents 
and other writings prepared by and for Consultant, its officers, employees and agents in the 
course of performing the Services shall become the sole property of the City upon payment 
to Consultant for the Services, and the City shall have the exclusive right to use such 
materials in its sole discretion without further compensation to Consultant or to any other 
party.  Consultant shall, at Consultant's expense, provide such reports, plans, studies, 
documents and writings to City or any party the City may designate, upon written request.  
Consultant may keep file copies of all documents prepared for City.  Use of any such 
documents by the City for projects that are not the subject of this Agreement or for 
purposes beyond the scope of the Services shall be at the City's sole risk without legal 
liability or expense to Consultant.  
 

Section 15. Changes and/or Extra Work. 
 

Only the City Council may authorize extra and/or changed Services, modification of the 
time of completion of the Services, or additional compensation for the tasks to be 
performed by Consultant.  Consultant expressly recognizes that other City personnel are 
without authorization to order extra and/or changed Services or to obligate the City to the 
payment of additional compensation.  The failure of Consultant to secure the prior written 
authorization for such extra and/or changed Services shall constitute a waiver of any and 
all right to adjustment in the contract price due to such unauthorized Services, and 
Consultant thereafter shall not be entitled to any compensation whatsoever for the 
performance of such extra or changed Services.  In the event Consultant and City agree that 
extra and/or changed Services are required, or that additional compensation shall be 
awarded to Consultant for performance of the Services under this Agreement, a 
supplemental agreement providing for such compensation shall be prepared and shall be 
executed by the Consultant and the necessary City officials before the extra and/or changed 
Services are provided. 
 

ITEM  2E
9 of 24



The RHC Group  -  April 25, 2018 

Section 16. Compliance with Federal, State and Local Laws. 
 

Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, 
ordinances, rules and regulations affecting the Services, including without limitation laws 
requiring licensing and prohibiting discrimination in employment because of race, creed, 
color, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, national origin or other 
prohibited bases.  City shall not be responsible or liable for Consultant's failure to comply 
with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules or regulations.  
 
Section 17. Retention of Records. 
 

Consultant and any subconsultants authorized by the terms of this Agreement shall keep 
and maintain full and complete documentation and accounting records, employees' time 
sheets, and correspondence pertaining to the Services, and Consultant shall make such 
documents available for review and/or audit by City and City's representatives at all 
reasonable times during performance of the Services and for at least four (4) years after 
completion of the Services and/or termination of this Agreement.  
 
Section 18. Alternative Dispute Resolution 
 
A. Before resorting to mediation, arbitration or other legal process, the primary 

contacts of the parties shall meet and confer and attempt to amicably resolve any 
dispute arising from or relating to this Agreement subject to the following 
provisions.  Any party desiring to meet and confer shall so advise the other party 
pursuant to a written notice.  Within 15 days after provision of that written notice 
by the party desiring to meet and confer, the primary contacts for each party shall 
meet in person and attempt to amicably resolve their dispute.  Each primary contact, 
or the person acting in their absence with full authority to resolve the dispute, shall 
attend the meeting and shall be prepared to devote an entire day thereto.  If any 
dispute remains unresolved at the end of the meeting, any party to this Agreement 
shall have the right to invoke the mediation process provided for in the 
subparagraph B below.  

 

B. Subject to the provisions of subparagraph A, any dispute that remains unresolved 
after the meet and confer shall immediately be submitted to non-binding neutral 
mediation, before a mutually acceptable, neutral retired judge or justice at the 
Sacramento Office of the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Service ("JAMS").  If 
within five days after the meet and confer the parties are unable to agree upon the 
selection of a neutral mediator, then the first available retired judge or justice at the 
Sacramento office of JAMS shall serve as the neutral mediator.  The parties agree to 
commit to at least one full day to the mediation process.  Additionally, to expedite 
the resolution of any dispute that is not resolved by mediation, the parties agree to 
each bring to the neutral mediation a list of at least five neutral arbitrators, 

ITEM  2E
10 of 24



The RHC Group  -  April 25, 2018 

including their resumes, whose availability for an arbitration hearing within 30 days 
after the mediation has been confirmed.  

 
C. If mediation is unsuccessful, before the mediation concludes, the parties shall 

mediate the selection of a neutral arbitrator to assist in the resolution of their 
dispute.  If the parties are unable to agree on an arbitrator, the parties agree to 
submit selection of an arbitrator to the mediator, whose decision shall be binding on 
the parties.  In that case, the mediator shall select a neutral arbitrator from the then 
active list of retired judges or justices at the Sacramento Office of the JAMS.  The 
arbitration shall be conducted pursuant to the provisions of the California 
Arbitration Act, sections 1280-1294.2 of the California Code of Civil Procedure. In 
such case, the provisions of Code of Civil Procedure Section 1283.05 and 1283.1 
shall apply and are hereby incorporated into this Agreement. 

 

D. This section 18 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.  If 
there is no Sacramento office of JAMS, then the office of JAMS closest to the City shall 
be used instead of a Sacramento office. 

 

Section 19. Severability. 
 

The provisions of this Agreement are severable.  If any portion of this Agreement is held 
invalid by an arbitrator or by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect unless amended or modified by the mutual 
written consent of the parties.  
 

Section 20. Entire Agreement; Amendment.  
 

This Agreement, including all exhibits hereto, constitutes the complete and exclusive 
expression of the understanding and agreement between the parties with respect to the 
subject matter hereof.  All prior written and oral communications, including 
correspondence, drafts, memoranda, and representations, are superseded in total by this 
Agreement.  This Agreement may be amended or extended from time to time only by 
written agreement of the parties hereto. 
 
Section 21. Time of the Essence. 
 

Time is of the essence in the performance of the Services.  The Consultant will perform its 
Services with due and reasonable diligence consistent with sound professional practices 
and shall devote such time to the performance of the Services as may be necessary for their 
timely completion. 
 
 
 

ITEM  2E
11 of 24



The RHC Group  -  April 25, 2018 

Section 22. Written Notification. 
 

Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, any notice, demand, request, consent, 
approval or communications that either party desires or is required to give to the other 
party shall be in writing and either served personally or sent by first class mail, postage 
prepaid and addressed as follows. Either party may change its address by notifying the 
other party in writing of the change of address.  Notice shall be deemed communicated 
within two business days from the time of mailing if mailed within the State of California as 
provided in this Section.  
 
If to City:  City of Colfax  
   33 S. Main Street  
   Colfax, CA  95713  
 

If to Consultant:  The RCH Group 
   1106 White Rock Road, Suite 150-A  
   Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 
 

Section 23. Execution. 
 

This Agreement may be executed in original counterparts, each of which shall constitute 
one and the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties when at least one 
original counterpart is signed by both parties hereto. In proving this Agreement, it shall not 
be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart. 
 

Section 24. Successors.  
 
This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the respective parties hereto 
except to the extent of any contrary provision in this Agreement. 
 
Section 25. Attorney's Fees.  
 
If any party to this Agreement commences legal proceedings to enforce any of its terms or 
to recover damages for its breach, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its 
reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and the expenses of expert witnesses, including any such 
fees costs and expenses incurred on appeal. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM  2E
12 of 24



The RHC Group  -  April 25, 2018 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby have executed this Agreement on the day first 
above written:  
 
CITY  CONSULTANT  

 
Signature: 

 
Signature: 

 

 
Printed Name: 

 
Printed Name: 

 

 
Title: 

 
Title: 

 

 
Date: 

 
Date: 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
 City Attorney 

 
 

ITEM  2E
13 of 24



[1] 
Maidu Village/ Arco Gas Station Project 

Maidu Village/ Arco Gas Station  
Proposal for Consulting Services & 
CEQA Document Preparation 

1 PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

Colfax Auburn LLC (the Applicant) proposes to develop on an 8.39‐acre parcel (Placer County APN 100‐

240‐016) west of the I‐80 on‐ramp/off‐ramp on South Auburn Street in the City of Colfax. The project 

site is bordered by Hansen Bros. (industrial) and Mountain Village (office/retail) to the north, UPRR 

tracks and a single family residence to the west, McDonalds to the south (other commercial/retail uses 

farther south) and a Starbucks and 76 Gas Station to the east. The proposed project includes the 

development a gas station/convenience store, a fast‐food restaurant and coffee kiosk, a sit‐down 

restaurant, commercial retail space and a hotel.  

The construction and operation of the proposed uses is the “project,” as defined by the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The City of Colfax is the CEQA Lead Agency. The project entitlements 

needed are a master site plan, major design review (for gas station) and a parcel map. It is understood 

that development of the project would be phased and phase 1 would consist of construction of the gas 

station/convenience store. Phase 2 would consist of construction of the fast‐food restaurant, coffee 

kiosk and sit‐down restaurant. Phase 3 would consist of construction of the commercial retail space and 

hotel. Construction of phase 1 would begin in 2018 and the timing of the construction for the other 

phases would follow depending on market demands.  

2 PROJECT APPROACH 

2.1 GENERAL APPROACH 
RCH’s Managing Principal of Environmental Services, Paul Miller, will manage the proposed project. Paul 

is an environmental professional with more than 33 years of experience in providing services and 

products to government agencies and private sector corporations. With a broad range of environmental 

skills, he has applied his background since 1986 to CEQA and NEPA and has been integral in the 

preparation of over 500 CEQA/NEPA environmental documents, including project manager for more 

than 18 major EIRs. Paul managed the Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for Sierra 

Oaks Estates and Village Oaks, a 34‐lot single‐family residential neighborhood and a 76‐unit multi‐family 

residential community on a 35‐acre site near the southwest corner of Iowa Hill Road and Grand View 

Way in the City of Colfax. RCH prepared the IS/MND in‐house and the project was approved on 

December 14, 2016. RCH later prepared a CEQA Addendum for the project in 2017 and the new 

tentative map for the revised project was approved on February 14, 2018. Paul is also managing the 

Initial Study for the Colfax Hotel Project at the corner of South Auburn Street and Whitcomb Avenue, 

which RCH is currently preparing in‐house. 

ITEM  2E
14 of 24



[2] 
Maidu Village/ Arco Gas Station Project 

RCH has significant project experience in the Colfax and Placer County area and has good working 

relationships with responsible agencies and other jurisdictions applicable to the proposed project such 

as the City of Colfax Planning Department, Placer County Air Pollution Control District (PCAPCD) and 

Placer County Water Authority (PCWA).  

RCH will use its experience with CEQA and projects in Colfax and the Placer County area in preparing a 

CEQA document for the proposed project. An Initial Study will first be prepared for the proposed project 

to provide the City of Colfax with the information to use as the basis for deciding whether to prepare an 

Environmental Impact Report (EIR) or MND. The Initial Study will enable the Applicant and the City of 

Colfax to mitigate adverse impacts as a result of the proposed project before an EIR is prepared, 

enabling the proposed project to qualify for a MND. The Initial Study will use the Appendix G Checklist of 

the CEQA Guidelines and will contain responses for each checklist item (19 general categories of 

environmental impacts) and provide explanations for items with potential environmental impacts that 

need to have mitigation measures implemented.  

2.2 SCOPE OF WORK 

RCH proposes the following items for the Scope of Work. 

Task 1: Kick‐off Meeting 

At the “kick‐off” meeting with RCH, the Applicant team and the City of Colfax Planning Department. All 

parties will discuss the project components and confirm the impacts that will be addressed in the CEQA 

document. 

Task 2: Prepare Administrative Draft Initial Study 

RCH will prepare an Initial Study Checklist (CEQA Appendix G) to determine potential impacts. If no 

significant impacts are identified, or if mitigation measures can be identified for all potentially significant 

impacts and the Applicant agrees to implement them, then the City of Colfax can circulate a proposed 

Negative Declaration or a MND. It is expected that the proposed project would have minimal effects for 

many of the resource categories considered in the Initial Study Checklist. We have preliminarily 

identified the following issues for more thorough analysis in the Initial Study. 

Areas that will need a thorough discussion include: 

 Air Quality/ Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions  

 Biological Resources 

 Cultural Resources 

 Geology and Soils  

 Hydrology/Water Quality  

 Noise 

 Transportation/Traffic  

   

ITEM  2E
15 of 24



[3] 
Maidu Village/ Arco Gas Station Project 

Air Quality and GHG Emissions 

RCH will analyze potential air quality and GHG emissions impacts. Air quality and GHG emissions from 

construction and operation of the proposed project will be quantified using the California Emissions 

Estimator Model (CalEEMod), a statewide land emissions model which provides an accurate and 

comprehensive tool for quantifying air quality and GHG emissions impacts from land use projects in 

California. The air quality and GHG emissions analysis will follow the guidelines in the Placer County Air 

Pollution Control District’s (PCAPCD’s) CEQA Air Quality Handbook and estimated emissions from the 

proposed project will be compared to PCAPCD thresholds of significance. Based upon the size of the 

proposed project and the vehicle trip generation estimates, operational GHG emissions are expected to 

be above the PCAPCD’s GHG De Minimis Level and mitigation measures will be recommended. 

Biological Resources 

RCH will peer review the Biological Resources Assessment (2014) and the Biological Constraints Update 

(2017) prepared for project by Foothill Associates (requesting clarifications or more detail, if needed). 

The biological analysis in the initial study will follow the recommendations and conclusions of the 

reports prepared by Foothill Associates. Potentially significant impacts to jurisdictional wetlands will be 

addressed and mitigation measures will be recommended.  

Cultural Resources 

RCH will prepare the cultural Resources section of the initial study using the findings and 

recommendations of the cultural resources study to be prepared by Natural Investigations Company. 

The Natural Investigations Company scope of work for the cultural resources study is Attachment A of 

this proposal. The City of Colfax will need to follow AB 52 guidelines and offer AB 52 consultation to any 

tribes that have requested consultation in writing. RCH will assist the City in the preparation notification 

letters to tribes who have requested them and will support the City with AB 52‐related tasks.  

Geology and Soils 

RCH will review the earthwork/grading narrative provided by the Applicant’s engineer. The narrative 

should discuss proposed earthwork for the project including estimated cut/fill and soil import/export 

quantities. RCH assumes a geotechnical report will be required in the future (prior to grading permit 

approval) by the City of Colfax and by a mitigation measure in the initial study. The geology and soils 

section of the initial study will contain a discussion of potential impacts such as soil erosion, stability and 

expansive soils, and will discuss relevant guidelines and regulations such as the City of Colfax Hillside 

Development Guidelines and Chapter 15.30 of the City of Colfax Municipal Code (Grading, erosion and 

sediment control).  

Hydrology/Water Quality 

RCH will review the qualitative drainage narrative provided by the Applicant’s engineer. The narrative 

should discuss drainage improvements and water quality treatment proposed for the project. RCH 

assumes a drainage study will be required in the future (prior to grading permit approval) by the City of 

Colfax and by a mitigation measure in the initial study. The hydrology section of the initial study will 

contain a discussion of drainage improvements/changes at the project site as well as water quality 

requirements including obtaining a General Permit for Discharges of Stormwater Associated with 

Construction Activity (Construction General Permit), which requires a Stormwater Pollution Prevention 

Plan (SWPPP).    

ITEM  2E
16 of 24



[4] 
Maidu Village/ Arco Gas Station Project 

Noise 

RCH will conduct several short‐term (typically ten to 20 minutes) and one long‐term (typically 48 hours) 

noise measurement at the project site to estimate existing noise levels. The focus of the noise analysis 

will be potential impacts of construction and operations on sensitive receptors nearby the project site. 

The proposed project will have to comply with the Chapter 8.28 – Noise Standards in the City of Colfax 

Municipal Code. The noise analysis will also analyze the land use noise compatibility of the project site 

and the proposed hotel use, based on standards in the City of Colfax 2020 General Plan.  

Traffic and Transportation 

RCH will prepare peer review the Traffic Impact Analysis (2014) and the Addendum to Traffic Impact 

Analysis (2017) prepared for project by KD Anderson & Associates (requesting clarifications or more 

detail, if needed). The traffic and transportation section of the initial study will use the findings and 

recommendations of the reports prepared by KD Anderson & Associates. 

Task 3: Prepare Public Draft Negative Declaration or MND 

RCH will respond to City comments on the Administrative Draft Negative Declaration or MND (and 

Applicant comments, as appropriate, if they review the Administrative Draft document) and prepare a 

revised version of the document for pubic distribution. 

Task 4: Circulate CEQA Document 

In coordination with the City, RCH will assist in preparation (if necessary) of a Notice of Intent (NOI) to 

adopt a Negative Declaration or MND according to CEQA Guidelines 15070. RCH will also assist the City 

with any other CEQA noticing tasks the City requests.  

Task 5: Response to Public Comments  

RCH will respond to public comments received during Draft IS/MND public review period. At this time 

there is no way to estimate the level of public comments, 20 hours of staff time is included in this 

proposal to respond to comments for budgeting purposes. A more precise level of effort would be 

negotiated if needed, when all comments are received.  

Task 6: Public Hearing (Additional Meetings) 

RCH’s Project Manager (Paul Miller) and Deputy Project Manager (Dan Jones) will be in attendance at 

the kickoff meeting. RCH also assumes the following meeting as part of this SOW: 

RCH will attend the Public Hearing for the proposed project at the Colfax City Hall. At the Public Hearing, 

RCH will be able to answer questions and provide CEQA support to the City of Colfax Planning Staff. 

RCH’s cost proposal includes one Public Hearing, if additional meetings are require they will be invoiced 

on a time and materials basis with prior approval from the Planning Director. 

Task 7: Project Management 

This task includes all project management tasks necessary for completion of the project, including, 

scheduling, budgeting, invoicing, and coordination. 

ITEM  2E
17 of 24



[5] 
Maidu Village/ Arco Gas Station Project 

3 RELEVANT EXPERIENCE 

3.1 PROJECT MANAGER 
Paul Miller, RCH’s Managing Principal, will act as project manager. Paul is an environmental professional 

with more than 33 years of experience in providing services and products to government agencies and 

private sector corporations. His technical areas of expertise include CEQA project management and 

technical analyses in the areas of energy, integrated waste management, air quality, noise and 

hazardous materials. With a broad range of environmental skills, he has applied his background since 

1986 to CEQA and NEPA and has been integral in the preparation of over 250 CEQA and NEPA 

environmental documents, including project manager for more than 18 major EIRs. He has been the 

project manager or a key team leader for five state agencies (California Public Utilities Commission 

(CPUC), California Energy Commission (CEC), CalRecycle, the former California Integrated Waste 

Management Board, and the State Water Resources Board, Central Valley Region) on projects of 

statewide importance. 

Dan Jones will be the Deputy Project Manager. Dan will regularly coordinate with Paul Miller and also 

Amy Feagans at the City. Dan will help to move tasks forward on the Initial Study with full understanding 

of the project management team goals and all outstanding environmental concerns.  

3.2 PROJECT ASSOCIATES 
RCH’s Dan Jones, Mike Ratte and Erin Reddy will assist in the preparation of the Initial Study. Brief bios 

are presented below. 

Dan Jones is an Associate at RCH Group. As mentioned above, Dan will be the Deputy Project Manager. 

Dan will prepare many of the resource sections of the CEQA document and will assist in supporting 

project‐related tasks. Dan has been integral in RCH’s preparation of CEQA documents and technical 

studies in Colfax and Placer County, and throughout California. Dan’s technical experience includes 

CEQA compliance, air quality, greenhouse gas emissions, health risk assessments, noise, and integrated 

waste management. Dan’s technical noise experience includes short‐term and long‐term noise 

monitoring and traffic noise modeling. Dan is proficient in a variety of air emissions models including 

CalEEMod, California Air Resources Board’s EMFAC and OFFROAD, and Sacramento Metropolitan Air 

Quality Management District’s Road Construction Emissions Model. Dan also has technical experience 

working with dispersion modeling data and health risk assessments. 

Mike Ratte is a Senior Air Quality Scientist at RCH Group. Mike will be the Senior Reviewer of the air 

quality and greenhouse gas emissions portions of the CEQA document. Mike has been a practicing 

meteorologist and air quality specialist within the consulting business for 25 years. Mike’s technical 

expertise includes NEPA/CEQA environmental planning, air emissions inventories, ambient air 

monitoring, atmospheric dispersion modeling, air quality permitting, health risk assessments, and 

climate change analyses. He has worked extensively for local, state, and federal agencies, as well as a 

wide array of commercial businesses and industries. His recent projects involved transportation facilities 

(airports, roadways, and marine ports), land development (residential/commercial/institutional), 

landfills/composting, and mining/quarry operations. He is well versed in a wide array of air emission 

models including, EMFAC, OFFROAD, NONROAD, MOVES, CalEEMod, and AP‐42; dispersion models such 

ITEM  2E
18 of 24



[6] 
Maidu Village/ Arco Gas Station Project 

as AERMOD, EDMS, HARP, and CAL3QHC; with strong data management and ACCESS programming 

skills. 

Erin Reddy  is a technical associate at RCH with knowledge of ecology, natural resources management, 

urban  forestry, sustainability, and noise. She has over  four years of experience  in environmental data 

management  and website development  for  the  state of California. Her work  involves preparation of 

CEQA/NEPA environmental documents, technical noise analyses, and wetland alternative analyses. She 

has hands‐on experience with short‐term and long‐term noise monitoring. 

4 SCHEDULE  

The following shows RCH’s proposed schedule for the CEQA review. The schedule is aggressive and 

based on a start date of May 1st. The schedule dates would shift directly in relation to any later start 

date.  

Task 
Duration 

(Calendar Days)
Start 
Date 

Completion 
Date 

Notice to Proceed 1 5/1/2018 5/2/2018 

Task 1.  Kick off Meeting 1 5/2/2018 5/3/2018 

Task 2.  Prepare Administrative Draft Initial 
Study 60 5/4/2018 7/3/2018 

Administrative Draft Initial Study Review 7 7/4/2018 7/11/2018 

Task 3.  Prepare Public Draft ND or MND 7 7/12/2018 7/19/2018 

Task 4.  Circulate CEQA Document 30 7/20/2018 8/19/2018 

Task 5.  Response to Comments 7 8/20/2018 8/27/2018 

Task 6.  Public Hearing 15 8/28/2018 9/12/2018 
Note: This schedule is contingent upon receiving technical studies for the proposed project within 45 

days of notice to proceed. 

5 COST ESTIMATE 

The RCH cost estimate is provided in Table 1. 

The cost estimate assumes the following: 

 One round of review of the Initial Study by the City and/or the Applicant. If there are multiple 

reviewers their comments should be consolidated for return to RCH. 

ITEM  2E
19 of 24



[7] 
Maidu Village/ Arco Gas Station Project 

 The Cultural Resources Report will be prepared by Natural Investigations Company Inc. as a 

subcontractor to RCH. 

 RCH will receive the following: 

o A project description discussing required entitlements, project phasing and schedule, 

circulation infrastructure improvements, parking requirements, etc.  

o A qualitative drainage narrative discussing drainage improvements and water quality 

treatment proposed for the project. 

o An earthwork/grading narrative discussing proposed earthwork for the project including 

estimated cut/fill and soil import/export quantities.  

 

Tasks excluded include but are not limited to the following: 

 Additional rounds of review by the City of Colfax 

 New or additional technical reports 

 Preparation of an air quality health risk assessment 

 Preparation of an EIR 

 Changes to the Project Description that affect RCH work level of effort or schedule 

 Response to Public Comments received during Public Review (beyond the 20 hours included in 

the cost estimate) – at this time there is no way to estimate the level of public comments 

 Additional meetings not in the proposed Scope of Work

ITEM  2E
20 of 24



Table 1.  Cost Estimate RCH Group

Labor Effort Direct Costs

Subconsultant    Other Direct Costs

RCH Staff:

P
au

l M
ille

r

M
ik

e 
R

at
te

D
an

 J
on

es

E
rin

 R
ed

dy

G
ra

ph
ic

s 
an

d 
A

dm
in

RCH 
HOURS

RCH  
LABOR  
COSTS N

at
ur

al
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 C
o.

 T
ra

ve
l &

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 P
rin

tin
g 

&
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 O
th

er
 d

ire
ct

 c
os

t

 O
th

er
 d

ire
ct

 c
os

ts

Total 
Direct 
Costs 
plus

RCH 
TOTAL 
COSTS

  Employee category bill rate:  ($/hr) $160 $145 $95 $95 $90 5%

TASKS: (Hours per person per task)
1. Project Kick-Off Meeting 4 4 8 $1,020 $100 $105 $1,125
2. Administrative IS Preparation 12 45 32 4 93 $9,595 $200 $50 $263 $9,858

    Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Analyses 2 6 56 64 $6,510 $0 $6,510
    Cultural Resources 4 4 $380 $6,087 $6,391 $6,771
    Noise Measurements/ Evaluation 8 8 16 $1,520 $0 $1,520

3. Draft IS Preparation 4 2 16 4 26 $2,830 $76 $80 $2,910
4. Circulate CEQA Document 4 16 20 $2,160 $30 $200 $100 $347 $2,507
5. Response to Comments on CEQA Doc. (NTE 20 hours) 5 15 20 $2,225 $0 $2,225
6. Public Hearing (1) 6 6 12 $1,530 $100 $105 $1,635
7. Project Management 11 24 35 $4,040 $0 $4,040

TOTAL EFFORT (Hours) 48 8 194 44 4 298

TOTAL COSTS ($) $7,680 $1,160 $18,430 $4,180 $360 $31,810 $6,087 $430 $326 $100 $7,290 $39,100

Maidu Village/ Arco Gas Station Project

RCH Group 
Cost Estimate

ITEM  2E
21 of 24



 

 

 

 

Attachment A 

Natural Investigations Company 

Cultural Resources Proposal 

 

ITEM  2E
22 of 24



3104 O Street, #221, Sacramento, Ca 95816  •  916-765-9381 •  www.naturalinvestigation.com 
 

 

 

March 26, 2018 

Mr. Dan Jones 
RCH Group 
11060 White Rock Road, Suite 150-A 
Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 
 
Subject: Cultural Resources Services for the Maidu in Placer County, CA 
 
Natural Investigations Company, Inc. (Natural Investigations) has prepared the following scope of work and 
associated cost in response to the specific tasks and responsibilities for an archaeological investigation under the 
provisions CEQA (CCR14 Section 15064.5 and PRC Section 21083.2) and NHPA Section 106 (36 CFR 800) for 
an approximately 8.4-acre project area located near the community of Colfax, in Placer County, CA. 

 Task 1: Conduct a Cultural Resources CHRIS and NAHC Search  

Natural Investigations will conduct a California Historical Resources Information System (CHRIS) records search 
with a 0.25-mile radius of the proposed project area at the North Central Information Center (NCIC) at the 
California State University, Sacramento. The NCIC houses cultural resources records and the primary purpose of 
the CHRIS records search is to identify any previously recorded cultural resources known to exist within or 
adjacent to the project areas.  In addition to the archaeological inventory records and reports, an examination will 
be made of historic maps, the NRHP, the California Inventory of Historical Resources, and the listing of 
California Historical Landmarks. The records search will also reveal the nature and extent of any cultural 
resources work previously conducted within the project area.  

Natural Investigations will assess the potential for paleontological resources within the project area. This 
assessment would include a review of geologic maps and a record search of the online database maintained by the 
University of California Museum of Paleontology at Berkeley (UCMP). 

Additionally, Natural Investigations will contact the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) for a review 
of their Sacred Lands File. The NAHC will determine if any NAHC-listed Native American sacred lands are 
located within or adjacent to the project area.  In addition, the NAHC will provide a list of Native American 
contacts for the project that they believe should be contacted for additional information. As part of the Section 
106 process, an information letter and map will be sent to all recipients on the NAHC list. This scope and cost 
includes 1 site visit to meet with any Native American Tribe at the project location. 

Task 2: Cultural Resources Pedestrian Survey  

Upon completion of the CHRIS and NAHC records search, Natural Investigations will conduct an intensive 
pedestrian survey of the project area. Archaeologists will conduct the survey utilizing pedestrian transects spaced 
at maximum intervals of 15 meters, covering all portions of the project area. Areas which are inaccessible due to 
dense vegetation, unstable geologic conditions, or other obstructions will be surveyed at a reconnaissance-level, 
typically at 20-40 meter transects.   

ITEM  2E
23 of 24



 
 

Page 2 
 

Note: For the purposes of this scope and cost estimate, Natural Investigations assumes that the cultural resources 
survey will be negative for prehistoric and historic resources (i.e., no previously unrecorded cultural resources 
will be encountered and no previously recorded cultural resources will require updates). No testing or excavation 
will be conducted, nor will any artifacts, samples or specimens be collected during the survey. 

Task 3: Cultural Resources Technical Report  

Upon completion of the literature review and pedestrian survey, Natural Investigations will prepare a cultural 
resources confidential technical report for project area. The technical report will document the results of the 
literature review, NAHC search, and field survey as well as provide management recommendations for resources 
within or near the project area. The report will meet the Secretary of Interior’s Standards and Guidelines and will 
follow Archaeological Resource Management Reports: Recommended Contents and Format guidelines. The 
report will include maps depicting the area surveyed for cultural resources. If the locations of sensitive 
archaeological sites or Native American cultural resources will be depicted or described in the report, it will be 
considered confidential; the report may not be distributed to the public. In order to protect these sensitive 
resources, the confidential technical report shall be made available only to qualified cultural resources personnel, 
the landowner, and project management personnel on a “need-to-know” basis.  

Note: For the purposes of this scope and cost estimate, Natural Investigations assumes that RCH Group will 
provide a project description. 

Based on thoughtful consideration, Natural Investigations estimates our fee for the scope of services described 
herein as presented below: 

 Cost estimate 
Task Cost 

*CHRIS/UCMP/NAHC Searches $2,022 

Survey $980 

Report $3,085 

Total $6,087 

   *CHRIS Fees not to exceed $450 

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal and look forward to providing our services on this project.  
Please call if you have questions concerning this proposal.   

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Cindy J. Arrington, M.S., RPA  
Principal  
Natural Investigations Company, Inc 

ITEM  2E
24 of 24



1 

FOR THE APRIL 25, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Dane Schilling, City Engineer; Lorenzo Hernandez, Junior Engineer 
DATE: April 18, 2018 

SUBJECT: Pond 1 Levee Project, Award of Contract 

N/A X FUNDED UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $206,887 FROM FUND:  560 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 29-2018 
1. Authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with Diamond D General Engineering, Inc. for

construction of the Wastewater Treatment Plant Pond 1 Levee Project in the amount of
$168,988 with a contingency of up to $16,899; and,

2. Authorizing the City Manager to engage Coastland Engineering to perform construction
management and inspection of the project in an amount not to exceed $21,000.

SUMMARY: 
In 2014, the City installed a temporary bladder dam to stabilize influent flow into the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant (WWTP).  In early 2017, the temporary dam ruptured.  Since the temporary bladder dam failure, the plant 
has operated by allowing the influent flows to move directly into the plant’s process. High concentrations of 
ammonia disrupt the biological process used to clean the wastewater causing the WWTP to go into bypass-
mode.  Normally, the WWTP could dilute the high concentrations, but currently water in Ponds 2 and 3 have 
excess growth of algae. High levels of algae increase the WWTP turbidity levels above the National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit limits. When the turbidity exceeds the Permit limits, the operators 
are forced to send the water back into the storage ponds and to reprocess the influent. 

The proposed levee is a permanent solution to replace the defunct temporary bladder used to stabilize water 
concentrations entering the plant. The goal is to create an area in Pond 1 to allow 1-2 days of water storage and 
balance the constituents of the influent flows. In addition, the water storage created by the Pond 1 Levee will 
provide a maximized blending effect to prevent algae from growing. This project is critical to efficient operations 
of the plant.  

The Wastewater Treatment Plant Pond 1 Levee project was scheduled for completion in Fiscal Year 2017-2018. 
However, due to the high bids, low turnout of bidders, and weather concerns, the project was postponed and 
planned for construction this summer.  

The WWTP Pond 1 Levee project consists of the construction of an earthen levee with a shotcrete surface across 
an existing shotcrete lined wastewater pond. More specifically, it includes excavation, embankment, removal of 
the existing shotcrete liner, HDPE pipes and fittings, gate valve assemblies, concrete headwalls, placement of 
shotcrete liner, concrete pedestal supports and various other items of work. 

ITEM  5A
1 of 4



2 

 

On March 26, 2018, the City advertised for bids through the City’s website, CIPList website, through local 
contractor’s and builder’s exchanges and direct solicitation to local contractors.  A total of 11 prime contractors 
and 9 builder’s exchanges registered to receive the bid documents. The bids were due on April 17, 2018 at City 
Hall at 2:00 p.m.  
 
The City received four bids for the construction of the project. Staff reviewed the bids and determined that 
bidders were responsible and submitted responsive bids: 
 

Bidder’s Name  Base Bid Amount 

Diamond D General Engineering, Inc. $168,996 

Sierra National Construction, Inc.  $192,725 

Lorang Brothers Construction, Inc.  $193,337 

Cunningham Excavation, Inc.  $213.603 

 
The lowest bid of $168,996 included a discrepancy between the unit prices and totals. According to the 
instructions to bidders, the unit prices shall prevail. The revised lowest bid is $168,988. This significantly exceeds 
the project’s estimated budget of $125,000. However, staff recommends awarding the construction contract to 
the lowest bidder because this is the second time the project was bid and the current bid results are similar to 
those received in November 2017, which were $188,725 and $195,050. 
 
Diamond D General Engineering, Inc. has been determined to be the lowest responsible, responsive bidder. 
Based on the critical function of the proposed permanent influent levee, staff is recommending Council approve 
the contract with Diamond D General Engineering, Inc. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Amended Budget includes a $125,000 estimate for the construction of an earthen 
levee with shotcrete. During the design phase of the project, it was determined pipe extensions from the 
existing headworks, gate valves to control the influent flow, and an equalization valve system to equalize the 
pond when needed are essential for utilization and operational purposes. Also, the initial estimate just to 
construct the levee was low and did not include any design, inspection or administration costs associated with 
the project. 
 
Staff is recommending that Council award the contract, plus a 10% contingency, and the construction 
management and inspection costs of $21,000. The total estimated cost to construct and inspect the Project is 
$206,887 from Fund 560. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 29-2018 
 

ITEM  5A
2 of 4



Resolution __-2018 Pond 1 Levee  Page 1 
 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 
Resolution № 29-2018 

 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH 

DIAMOND D GENERAL ENGINEERING, INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT POND 1 LEVEE PROJECT IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $168,988 WITH A CONTINGENCY OF UP TO $16,899; AND, 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENGAGE COASTLAND ENGINEERING 

TO PERFORM CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION OF THE 

PROJECT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $21,000. RISING SUN ROAD 

PAVEMENT RESURFACING PROJECT, DESIGN AND BID APPROVAL. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Colfax allocated $125,000 in the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 

Amended Budget for the completion of the Wastewater Treatment Plant Pond 1 Levee 
Project (“Project”); and  

 
WHEREAS, on March 26, 2018, the project advertised on the City’s website, the CIPList 

website, direct solicitation and as well through local contractor’s builder’s exchanges; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on April 17, 2018, bids from four (4) contractors were received and 

publicly read aloud; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the lowest responsible and responsive bidder was determined to be 

Diamond D General Engineering, Inc.  with a bid amount of $168,988; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the total project cost including the Base Bid, plus a 10 % contingency, and 

construction management and inspection costs of $21,000 are estimated to be $206,899 
which is $81,899 over the adopted remaining budget; and, 

 
WHEREAS, City Staff has determined that the Project is necessary for the proper and 

efficient operation of the wastewater treatments plant. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Colfax hereby: 
 

1. Authorizes the City Manager to execute a contract with Diamond D General 
Engineering, Inc. for construction of the Wastewater Treatment Plant Pond 1 Levee 
Project in the amount of $168,988 with a contingency of up to $16,899; and, 

ITEM  5A
3 of 4



Resolution __-2018 Pond 1 Levee  Page 2 
 

2. Authorizes the City Manager to engage Coastland Engineering to perform 
construction management and inspection of the project in an amount not to exceed 
$21,000. Rising Sun Road Pavement Resurfacing Project, Design and Bid Approval. 

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 

Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 25th day of April 2018, by 
the following vote of the Council: 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

______________________________________ 
        Will Stockwin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  5A
4 of 4



 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

FOR THE APRIL 25, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager  
PREPARED BY: Dane Schilling, City Engineer; Jonathan Vaughan, Assistant Engineer 

DATE: April 18, 2018 
SUBJECT: 2018 ADA Improvements Project, Design Approval and Bid Authorization  

 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  $27,000 FROM FUND:  217 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 30-2018 approving the design for 
the City of Colfax 2018 ADA Improvements Project and authorizing the City Manager to advertise for 
construction bids. 

 

SUMMARY:  
 
The City of Colfax adopted an ADA Self-Evaluation and Transition Plan (Transition Plan) on June 21, 2017, to 
comply with Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  The Transition Plan is an on-going 
process intended to adapt as compliance standards change over time, as agencies remove barriers to 
persons with disabilities and as specific needs from the community are identified.  The majority of the City’s 
parking areas, sidewalks, curb ramps and crosswalks do not meet current ADA standards.  In order to 
resolve these ADA deficiencies, the City has allocated funds for ADA improvements in accordance with the 
priorities listed in the Transition Plan. Since the public commonly uses public parking and sidewalks in the 
vicinity of public facilities, improvements to the ADA parking stall in front of City Hall, other curb ramps in 
the vicinity of City Hall, the post office, library and other public facilities in the downtown area are 
designated the highest priority.  
 
Coastland Engineering has developed a design to improve these areas as denoted in the attached design 
sheets.  The scope of work for the 2018 ADA Project includes: removing and replacing the handicap parking 
stall in front of City Hall, placing truncated domes (yellow panels with bumps) on the NW corner of South 
Main Street and Church Street, and constructing a sidewalk ramp at the alley in front of Colfax Motorsports on 
Church Street.  Construction is anticipated in the summer of 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM  5B
1 of 8



 

2 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
   
The City has budgeted $27,000 in Fiscal Year 2017-2018 for the design, construction and inspection of ADA 
projects.  The goal of the 2018 Project will be to construct as many improvements as possible within the 
adopted budget. 
 
 

Budget: $27,000 

Estimated Project Expenses:  

Project Management & Design $3,600 

Construction $22,400 (See Priority List Below) 

Inspection $1,000 

Estimated Expenses $27,000 

Estimated Construction Costs  

(Prioritized):  

1. Handicap Parking Stall $18,500 

2. Truncated Domes $1,000 

3. Motorsports Sidewalk Ramp $5,500 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution 30-2018 
2. Design of 2018 ADA Improvements 

ITEM  5B
2 of 8



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 
Resolution № 30-2018 

 
APPROVING THE DESIGN FOR THE CITY OF COLFAX 2018 ADA 

IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
ADVERTISE FOR CONSTRUCTION BIDS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Colfax adopted an ADA Self-Evaluation and Transition Plan on 

June 21, 2017, to comply with Title II of the American with Disabilities Act of 1990; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s ADA Self-Evaluation and Transition Plan identifies access to 

public facilities such as City Hall, the post office and library as the highest priority; and 
 
WHEREAS, the adopted FY 2017-2018 Budget includes $27,000 for the design, 

construction, inspection and administration of ADA improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, Coastland Civil Engineering has produced engineering design drawings 

and specifications for public bidding and construction of the following locations:  public 
parking at City Hall, the pedestrian ramps at the northwesterly corner of Main Street, and the 
pedestrian ramp in front of Colfax Motorsports; and  

 
WHEREAS, City Staff recommends advertising the 2018 ADA Improvements Project 

for construction bids.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Colfax approves 

the design of the City of Colfax ADA Transition Plan 2018 Project and authorizes the City 
Manager to advertise for construction bids. 

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 

Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 25th day of April 2018 by 
the following vote of the Council: 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

______________________________________ 
        Will Stockwin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:                                                                                                                                 
 
___________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  5B
3 of 8



ITEM  5B
4 of 8



ITEM  5B
5 of 8



ITEM  5B
6 of 8



ITEM  5B
7 of 8



ITEM  5B
8 of 8



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE APRIL 25, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: USDA – Rural Development Community Facilities Grant 
 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $30,000  FUND: 292 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 31-2018 accepting the United States Department of 
Agriculture (USDA) – Rural Development Community Facilities Grant for purchase of new City 
Rescue Vehicle and Wildland Fire Protection Equipment. 

 

DISCUSSION AND SUMMARY: 
 
City Staff has applied for grant funding under the USDA Rural Development Community Facilities 
Direct Loan & Grant Program.  This program funding can be used to purchase, construct, and/or 
improve essential community facilities, purchase equipment and pay related project expenses.  The 
City applied under the Public Safety Services category for grant funding for the purchase of the new 
City Fire Rescue vehicle and the purchase of Wildland Fire Protection Equipment.  Note:  The Wildland 
Fire Protection Equipment is also partially funded by the CalFire Volunteer Fire Assistance (VFA) 
Grant Program.  Total project costs and funding sources are reflected below: 
 

   
 
The City has received notification from USDA that the City application for $30,000 has been funded. 
Council must formally approve acceptance of the funds.   

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 31-2018 
2. USDA Form 3570-3 – Community Facilities Grant Agreement 

 

Project Cost

Rescue Vehicle 177,828$       

Wildland Fire Protection Equipment 36,310$          

Total 214,138$       

Source of Funds

City 165,418$       

USDA Grant 30,000$          

CalFire VFA Grant 18,720$          

Total 214,138$       

ITEM  5C
1 of 8



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 31-2018 
 

ACCEPTING THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
(USDA) – RURAL DEVELOPMENT COMMUNITY FACILITIES GRANT 
FOR PURCHASE OF NEW CITY RESUCE VEHICLE AND WILDLAND 

FIRE PROTETION EQUIPMENT 
BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLFAX 

COUNTY OF PLACER, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

 IN THE MATTER OF Resolution Number:  31-2018 Accepting the United States 
Department of Agriculture (USDA) Rural Development Community Facilities Grant # 04-
031-0946000313 Fund CODE 00. 
 

 BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax that said City does hereby 
accept the USDA Community Facilities Grant Award as documented on Form 3570-3 up to 
and no more than the amount of $30,000.00. 
 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager of the City of Colfax be and 
hereby is authorized to sign and execute said Agreement and any amendments on behalf of 
the City of Colfax. 
 

 THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City 
Council of the City of Colfax, at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 25th day of  
April 2018 by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
        ____________________________________ 
        Will Stockwin, Mayor 
 

------CERTIFICATION OF RESOLUTION------ 
ATTEST: 
I Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk of the City of Colfax, County of Placer, California, do hereby 
certify that this is a true and correct copy of the original Resolution Number XX-2018. 
 

WITNESS MY HAND OR THE SEAL OF THE City of Colfax, on this 26th day of April 2018. 

 
      
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  5C
2 of 8



ITEM  5C
3 of 8



ITEM  5C
4 of 8



ITEM  5C
5 of 8



ITEM  5C
6 of 8



ITEM  5C
7 of 8



ITEM  5C
8 of 8


	00A 180425 Agenda
	02A 180411 Minutes
	02B Cash Summary March 2018
	2018-09 Staff Report Cash Summary Mar 2018
	Data

	02C Sales Tax
	2018-04-25 Staff Report - Sales Tax Analysis
	Sales and Use Data

	02D Investment Report
	180425 SR Quarterly Investment Quarter 1
	Quarterly Investment Data

	02E RCH Maidu
	SR Neg Dec contract RCH Group
	Resolution 28-2018 RCH Maidu Village
	180124 The RCH Group for S. Auburn-Whitcomb Hotel CEQA
	Maidu Village Arco Proposal RCH Group 4_12_18

	05A Pond 1 Levee Award of Contract
	180425 SR Pond1 Levee 
	Resolution 29-2018 Pond1

	05B 2018 ADA Project
	180425 SR 2018 ADA Improvements
	Resolution 30-2018 ADA Improvements
	Attachment 2 - 2018 ADA Improvements

	05C USDA Grant
	180425 SR USDA Community Facilities Grant Acceptance
	Resolution 31-2018 USDA Grant Acceptance
	180410 USDA Grant Fire truck




